Minutes 5/13/21 ZBA

Town of Sand Lake
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
May 13, 2021

The minutes, as follows, are intended to provide a general summary of the Agenda items and Public
Hearings. Quotes presented are not verbatim, nor is all discussion which occurred presented herein. This
document should not be relied upon as a transcript or the actual proceedings. The transcript of this
meeting is on a digital voice recorder and available at the Town Hall.

CALL TO ORDER: Melissa Toni opened the meeting at 7:02 PM
MEMBERS PRESENT: Geraldine Burger
Scott Bendett
Amy Lent
MEMBERS ABSENT: Wayne Gendron
OTHERS PRESENT: Andrew Bulmer, Sarah Campbell, Esq., Dan Peeters, William Burdick,

Kevin McGrath, Valerie Balga, Jonathan Tingley, Stephen Clemens, Pat
Simons, Monica Ryan (Town Planner)

RECORDING CLERK: Laura Fedoreshenko, Clerk for Planning Board and ZBA

Area Variance Application & Public Hearing

Sharon Hogle Guthier and Tax Map #: 158.-3-6.11
Susan Hogle Rowlands-Clemens (Applicants) Original Lot Size: 5.47 acres
60 1°* Dyke Road

Averill Park, NY 12018

R-Residential Zoning District

An area variance application regarding insufficient lot width/frontage as related to a proposed boundary
line adjustment.

Surveyor Kevin McGrath presented and summarized the project which had been initially presented at the
April 15, 2021 Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting. Geraldine Burger (GB) asked if there would be a
driveway to which Mr. McGrath replied yes and it was already constructed on the 5.47-acre parcel.
Melissa Toni (MT) motioned to open the Public Hearing at 7:08pm, seconded by Amy Lent (AL) and all
approved. With no public written or online public comments received, MT motioned to close the Public
Hearing at 7:10pm; seconded by GB and all approved. MT stated that the reason that the area variance
was being sought was due to proposed insufficient lot width/frontage of 44.57’. She referred to the
Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) survey map and stated that one lot conformed, the other lot would have
44.57 of adjustment. Mr. McGrath referred to the survey map and explained the unusual layout of the
existing lots. MT noted that due to the unusual layout there were no other feasible options to achieve
the desired outcome. Mr. McGrath agreed and added that the Link Family Trust was in discussions to
purchase an adjacent vacant parcel. He added if the purchase came to fruition they may, in the future,
take some road frontage from that parcel to add to the 5.47-acre lot. Mr. McGrath explained that the
5.47-acre parcel was for the grandson who had a home under construction and needed the Boundary Line
Adjustment (BLA) to be completed to be able to obtain the needed financing to finish the house. MT
asked if the BLA had been presented to the Panning Board (PB) to which Monica Ryan replied not yet. GB

1



Minutes 5/13/21 ZBA

stated that the area variance was needed to be able to gain access to the parcel. MT agreed and added
that she did not see any another alternative.

GB motioned to classify the Area Variance as a Type 2 under SEQR, declaring the Town of Sand Lake ZBA
to be the Lead Agency; seconded by MT and all approved.

MT stated the following criteria that ZBA members considered upon making the determination for this
Area Variance Application.

1. Whether an undesirable change will be produced in the character of the neighborhood or a
detriment to nearby properties will be created by the granting of the area variance.

MT stated that she did not view the requested area variance as having an undesirable
change. She added that the result would be lots of appropriate size that would blend in
with the surrounding character.

2. Whether the benefit sought by the applicant can be achieved by some method, feasible for
the applicant to pursue, other than an area variance.

MT noted that there was not another method to allow access to the 5.47-acre parcel.

3. Whether the requested area variance is substantial.

MT stated that the requested Area Variance of a 44.57 for lot frontage was not,
historically, what the ZBA considered as substantial.

4. Whether the proposed variance will have an adverse effect or impact on the physical or
environmental condition in the neighborhood or district.

MT stated she did not believe the request would have an adverse effect or impact as it
was noted that it would allow for development on one of the parcels. She added that it
would also help to bring one of the lots closer to a conforming size.

5. Whether the alleged difficulty was self-created, which consideration shall be relevant to the
decision of the board of appeals but shall not necessarily preclude the granting of the area
variance.

MT stated that, as with many of the requests before the ZBA, the difficulty was self-
created.

AL motioned to approve the requested Area Variances as submitted; seconded by MT and all
approved.

Area Variance Application & Public Hearing

Valerie Balga (Applicant) Tax Map #: 158.4-5-24
1202 Burden Lake Road Original Lot Size: .17 acres
Averill Park, NY 12018

R-Residential Zoning District

An area variance application regarding insufficient front and side yard setbacks as related to a scenic
preservation application for a proposed accessory structure within 100’ of Burden Lake.

Valerie Balga presented and summarized the project which had been initially presented at the April 15,
2021 ZBA meeting. MT asked Ms. Balga to reiterate the status with the Department of Environmental
Conservation (DEC). Ms. Balga replied that the only issue DEC had was to install reinforcement of the
structure which would be metal poles (same as were used for the deck) as they were ecologically friendly
and stood the test of time. Monica Ryan explained that the area variances were needed for the roofed
structure as the Zoning code allowed for, on lakes, an accessory structure in the front yard with a 10’
setback and “0” setback was being sought as it would be right onto the water. She added that a side yard

2



Minutes 5/13/21 ZBA

setback of 5" was required and “0” was being sought as it would be right on the corner. MT replied that
both requested area variances were then at 100% for which Ms. Ryan agreed.

With no further questions from the Board members, MT motioned to open the public hearing at 7:26pm;
seconded by AL and all approved. Board members were informed that 5 neighbor letters had been sent
out by the Planning /ZBA Office and Ms. Ryan stated that no calls or written comments had been received
on the application. Barbara Colandrea was online and asked if the base of the gazebo would extend out
into the channel even with the deck and whether it would extend out on the front of the property or just
the side. Ms. Balga replied that the gazebo would extend out 2’ onto the water in the front and to the
side. MT referred to the site picture and asked if the existing deck was already 2’ out onto the water. Ms.
Balga replied that the deck was right at the waterline; thus, the gazebo would go slightly beyond the
existing deck. MT asked if there was another alternative for the location of the gazebo to alleviate the
need for the area variances. Ms. Balga replied that the idea was an extension of repairing an existing
deck. She added the property was quite small and had not been manicured nor accessible; thus, the
location was chosen to allow it to be accessible and aesthetically pleasing on the lakeside. MT noted DEC
regulated lakes and channel and had stated they were not seeking jurisdiction over the project as the
structure would cantilever over the water with no fill being done. MT then asked if there were plans to
add vegetation or habitat to the water body for the natural bank area along the lake that was outside of
the project area. Ms. Balga replied that the plan was to landscape the area — she welcomed any thoughts,
advise or guidance from the Board. Scott Bendett (SB) indicated that he did not have any feedback and
AL stated that it seemed like an appropriate rocky shoreline. MT stated that the area was not known for
fantastic wildlife habitat. With no further public comments or questions from Board members, MT
motioned to close the public hearing at 7:34pm; seconded by GB and all approved.

MT motioned to classify the Area Variance as a Type 2 under SEQR, declaring the Town of Sand Lake ZBA
to be the Lead Agency; seconded by GB and all approved.

MT stated the following criteria that ZBA members considered upon making the determination for this
Area Variance Application.

1. Whether an undesirable change will be produced in the character of the neighborhood or a
detriment to nearby properties will be created by the granting of the area variance.
MT stated that while it was not typical for the ZBA to grant 100% setbacks. She noted
that it was a corner lot on the water; thus, no neighbors on the front or side and another
area already had trees on it. She also noted that no neighbors had negatively commented
on the project. GB noted that the gazebo did not appear to block the view of neighbors.
Board members agreed it would not cause a detriment or undesirable change to the
character of the neighborhood.
2. Whether the benefit sought by the applicant can be achieved by some method, feasible for
the applicant to pursue, other than an area variance.
MT noted that multiple questions had been asked and stated that it was a tight lot; thus,
no other location feasible. She added that the other area had mature trees that should
not be removed and the gazebo near the existing deck made sense. GB agreed and AL
commented that it was a logical location.
3. Whether the requested area variance is substantial.
MT stated that the requested Area Variances of 100% for the front and side yard setbacks
was considered substantial; however, there was not an adjacent property owner on either
side as it would be along the water. Board members agreed with the statement made by
MT.



Minutes 5/13/21 ZBA

4. Whether the proposed variance will have an adverse effect or impact on the physical or
environmental condition in the neighborhood or district.

MT noted that DEC had a choice on whether to take jurisdiction over the project and
require a permit or application materials and had decided not to do so or require further
information. MT felt DEC’s decision spoke volumes regarding the environmental
conditions of the bank and the habitat potentially provided by the bank along the lake.
She added that Ms. Balga had stated that there would not be any further bank work done.
She concluded that the impacts of the project were very minimal. Board members agreed
with the statements made by MT.

5. Whether the alleged difficulty was self-created, which consideration shall be relevant to the
decision of the board of appeals but shall not necessarily preclude the granting of the area
variance.

MT stated that, as with many of the requests before the ZBA, the difficulty was self-
created.

GB motioned to approve the requested Area Variances as submitted; seconded by AL and all approved.

Area Variance Application

Andrew & Moira Bulmer (Applicant) Tax Map #: 170.2-1-4
24 Stone Camp Way Lot Size: 1.84 acres
Averill Park, NY

R-Residential Zoning District

An area variance application regarding insufficient front and side yard setbacks.

Andrew Bulmer and attorney Sarah Campbell were present. The area variances being sought by the
applicant were cited: side yard setback sought 20’ on the Carrolls’ side and on the northwest side a
measurement of 6.9" and on the southwest side a measurement of 3’ - due to the property line not being
straight. Ms. Campbell asked the surveyor, Dan Peeters, if the 3’ side yard included the bowed window
to which Mr. Peeters replied was correct based on the plans he had been provided. MT then stated for
the front yard setback (roadside) the measurement was 6.1’. Ms. Ryan noted that an area variance of 30’
to the lake versus the required 50’ had been previously granted; thus, the current measurement of 31’
fell within the parameters. Ms. Campbell stated that all the measurements for the needed area variances
was based upon the roofline including any bump outs/bowed windows. MT asked if all documentation
pertaining to the project had been received and cited the following: site plan dated 4/30/21; revised SEQR
Part 1 dated 5/13/21, original application materials dated 4/6/21 supplemented by application materials
dated 5/6/21. Ms. Campbell agreed with MT’s statement.

MT motioned to seek a Recommendation from the Planning Board as the project would require a Scenic
Preservation Review; seconded by GB and all approved. MT motioned to deem the application complete
and scheduled the Public Hearing for June 10, 2021 at 7pm; seconded by GB and all approved.

Mr. Bulmer asked if a measurement was needed from the corner of the foundation to the right of way
(private road) if the porch was removed to reflect that change. It was agreed that the variance being
sought for was 6.1’ and to add such information, after the fact, would be deemed as an incomplete
application to which Mr. Bulmer agreed.

Area Variance Application
William Burdick (applicant/property owner) Tax Map # 147.1-4-24 & 147.1-4-24.5
Udderly Ice Cream, LLC




Minutes 5/13/21 ZBA

3579 Route 43 Lot Size: 3 acres
West Sand Lake, NY 12196
HMU — Hamlet Mixed Use Zoning District

An area variance application for an additional business sign.

William Burdick presented and explained that he had purchased the ice cream shop and installed new
signs to each side of the building along with a free-standing sign at the entrance. Ms. Ryan pointed out
that the Zoning Code allowed two signs per property and currently three signs existed. She explained that
the amount of signage allowed per property was driven by the linear frontage of the building fagade. She
added that Mr. Burdick was seeking area variances for a total of 3 signs and exceeding the allowed square
footage of signage. MT asked why three signs were needed and why the square footage was bigger than
allowed. Mr. Burdick replied that the signs were relatively small, and he needed to advertise on both
sides of the building for a more successful business. He added that the previous owner did not have many
signs up and had heard from several folks that they were not aware that the ice cream shop existed. Ms.
Ryan clarified for all present that the Zoning code allowed for every linear foot of the building’s frontage
- one square foot of signage; thus the 30’ building was allowed 30 square feet of signage. GB noted that
the signs already existed and stated that she felt the signs did not look out of proportion to the building.
She added that considering the size of the building it would be hard to adhere to the Zoning code. MT
motioned to deem the application as complete and scheduled the public hearing for June 10, 2021;
seconded by SB and all approved.

DRAFT RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL

o Adoption of Negative Declaration for Thomas and Flora Fasoldt
MT motioned to waive the full reading of the draft Negative Declaration Resolution; seconded
by SB and all approved.
MT motioned to approve the Resolution in its entirety; seconded by SB and all approved.

e Area Variance Application for Thomas and Flora Fasoldt
MT motioned to waive the full reading of the draft Resolution; seconded by SB and all approved.
MT motioned to approve the Resolution in its entirety; seconded by GB and all approved.

o Adoption of Negative Declaration for Glenn Kinney
MT motioned to waive the full reading of the draft Negative Declaration Resolution; seconded
by SB and all approved.
MT motioned to approve the Resolution in its entirety; seconded by SB and all approved.

e Area Variance Application for Glenn Kinney
MT motioned to waive the full reading of the draft Resolution; seconded by SB and all approved.
MT motioned to approve the Resolution in its entirety; seconded by AL and all approved.

ADJOURMENT - MT motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:18pm; seconded by SB and all approved.



